
United Nations THIRD COMMITTEE, 909th 
GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FOURTEENTH SESS/01\' 

Official Records 

REC EI''/~ 
~ 4NO V 19wJ 

.......,.~ 

::JC ~- ·· -· (' ·~ . '8RARY 

MEETING 

Monday, 28 September 1959, 
at 3.15 p.m. 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 64: 
Draft Declaration of the Rights of the Child 

(continued) 

Page 

General debate (continued). . . . . . . . . . . . 15 

Chai r man: Mrs. Georgette CISELET (Belgium). 

AGENDA ITEM 64 

Draft Declaration of the Rights of the Child (A/ 4185, 
E/ 3229, chap. VII, A/ 4143, chap. VII, sec. V) (continued) 

GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 

1. The CHAIRMAN suggested that t he Committee 
should set time limits for the submission of amend­
ments to the draft Declaration of the Rights of the 
Child (E/3229, para. 197, resolution 5 (XV)). 

2. After a discussion in which Mr. RIBEIRO DA 
CUNHA (Portugal), Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican 
Republic), Lady PETRIE (Uriited Kingdom) and Mr. 
BAROODY (Saudi Arabia) took part, the CHAIRMAN 
proposed that the time limit for the submission of 
amendments to the preamble and principle 1 should be 
4. 30 p.m. on 29 September and for amendment's to 
principles 2 to 11, 4.30 p.m. on 30 September. 

It was so decided. 

3. Miss HAMPTON (New Zealand) said that she would 
not expatiate on the measures which her country had 
taken to apply the principles contained in the draft 
Declaration of the Rights of the Child. Her delegation 
supported those principles whole- heartedly and be­
lieved that the draft Declaration was a useful docu­
ment although it would have· preferred a more concise 
enunciation of general principles than that in the text 
prepared by t he Commission on Human Rights since 
it thought it was desirable that each country should be 
free to enact whatever laws and regulations it saw fit 
to give effect to the principles. She had been happy to 
note that other delegations were of the same mind. 

4:. Mr. PENADES (Uruguay) said that the item under 
discussion was one of the most important items with 
which the United Nations had to deal, and also one of 
the most disturbing. There was an urgent need to pro­
vide assistance for children, since lack of care was 
one of the major causes of infant mortality and also of 
abnormality in the children who survived. 

5. In Uruguay, it was felt that the child should be the 
most privileged member of society. The principle of 
child protection was enshrined in the Constitution and 
the child's rights were protected by a whole body of 
legislation, which was still being added to and which 
was designed to protect children from before birth to 
the age of eighteen. 

NEW YORK 

6. Uruguay r ecognized many rights of the child. First, 
it recognized that the child had the right to life from 
the time of his conception, with the resultthat abortion 
was severely punished and that mothers were entitled 
to protection before, during and after the birth of the 
child. Secondly, the child had the right to a family; 
every child was entitled to know who his parents were, 
whether he was legitimate o r illegitimate , and should 
in principle live with them. Thirdly, it had the r ight to 
health; this was protected by a vast network of hospitals 
and medical institutions and the child's physical devel­
opment was supervised by the National Committee on 
Physical Education. Fourthly, the child had the right to 
support; it could receive this in two ways , either 
directly from his parents, or in the form of a chil­
dren's allowance, which was paid to the mother and 
us ed by her for the child's exclusive benefit. Fifthly, 
the child had the right to education; the father was 
entitled to choose the child's education but it must be 
adequate. He was obliged by law to send his child to 
school, but he could choose the type of educational 
institution a nd religious faith in which the child should 
be brought up. State education was compulsory for 
all children not attending private schools, free at 
the primary, secondary and vocational levels, non­
denominational, an extension of the home and non­
discriminatory. Sixthly, the child had the right to a 
healthy moral and spiritual family environment; the 
State took care of orphans and foundl ings and children 
deprived of proper care, whom it placed either in 
institutions or with families. 

7. There were many specialized organizations in 
Uruguay for the protection of children and great 
efforts were being made to help them and to improve 
t heir lot. Many eminent Uruguayans were well-known 
for t~eir outstancling work In that field. As could be 
seen, the practice in Uruguay was in harmony with the 
principles enunciated in the draft Declaration, for 
which his delegation would vote, although it had reser­
vations about some parts of the text. 

8. Mr. SCHWEITZER (Chile) said that the principles 
proclaimed in the draft Declaration had been recog­
nized for many years in Chile, where a considerable 
body of legislation ensured their application. His dele­
gation would support the draft Declaration, but bad 
some reservations regarcling the existing form; it 
should be a clear enunciat ion of general principles 
which all countries could easily follow. He hoped that 
a suitable text would finally be adopted. 

9. Mr. MALITZA (Romania) welcomed the fact that 
the draft Declaration of the Rights of the Child was at 
last receiving proper attention and noted that the 
slackening of international tension would provide a 
favourable atmosphere for the adoption of a declara­
tion. His delegation would have preferred an inter• 
national convention imposing binding obligations on 
States but, as some countries were not yet ready to 

15 A/C.3/SR.909 



16 \ General Af sembly - Fourteenth Session - Titird Committee 

adhere to such an instrument, it wa 3 ready to accept 
a declaration. 
10. His country had made enormous efforts to 1m­
prove the well- being of its own children, Before 1944, 
infant mortality had been extremely ltigh and illiteracy 
widespread. In 1959, fifteen years af .er its liberation, 
his country had up-to- date legislati<•n and a compre­
hensive network of institutions for the protection of 
children. Infant mortality had fallen from 17 per cent 
in 1938 to 8 per cent and all school- age children now 
went to school. The protection of the family was 
guaranteed by the Constitution and by various laws. 
Twenty- three per cent of the 1959 budget was devoted 
to social activities, from which children we re the first 
to benefit, 
11. He could not share the view that the draft Decla­
ration should merely be a common dmominator ofthe 
measures which all States were able to take at the 
current time, On the contrary, its et.sential value lay 
in the stimulus it provided and the glidance it gave to 
States. It should be a statement of principles of lasting 
value. 
12. He was unable to accept the di!:t tnction made by 
the United Kingdom delegation betwe·m principles and 
implementation. lt was the measures< f implementation 
which made the principles intelligil•le and effective. 
He supported the Burmese delegati< n's view that the 
draft Declaration must contain me~ .sures of imple­
mentation. It should be simply wor ded and concise, 
but should not exclude practical prov isions and meas­
ures of implementation. In its existir .g form, the draft 
Declaration formed a sound basis fo1 the Committee's 
work and contained a number of progrossive provisions 
which gave it worth and weight. The 11eed to enunciate 
the principles laid down in the Do lclaration at the 
current time was obvious. Thousand~ of children were 
depr ived ofthe rights contained in it. 1 hey were without 
education, undernourished and lacke:l medical assis­
tance; segregation in education was 1 ife and, far from 
developing harmoruously, many young people were 
becoming juvenile delinquents and resorting to murder. 
13. He was opposed to the deletion c f any parts of the 
draft Declaration which dealt with the points to which 
he had referred. He would, howe\ e r, support any 
amendment which would improve the textand increase 
its scope and effectiveness, One important rightofthe 
child was not included in the existing craft Declaration: 
his right to be protected from traffi ~king. It was un­
thinkable to affirm the fundamental r lghts of the child 
without including at the same time ar explicit ~rohibi­
tion of the degrading practice oftraffi ~king in children, 
which still existed in some advance d countries. His 
delegation was considering a text to 1:over that point. 

14. Begum Aziz AHMED (Pakistall) observed that 
many children in the world still did not enjoy the rights 
enunciated in the draft Declaration. There were large 
nwnbers of children in that unfortunate position in 
Pakistan, but her Government was :loing everything 
possible, with the assistance of tnten:ational a gencies, 
to alleviate their lot. 

15. The draft Declaration represented an ideal to­
wards which all nations could strive. In that connexion 
she agreed with the statement (E/CN,4/ NG0/84)ofthe 
International Union for Child WelfarE• (IUCW) that the 
draft should be concerned with princi pies only and not 
with their implementation, since the nanner and time 
of implementation would inevitably Vl .ry from country 
to country. 

16. She was inclined to agree with the United King­
dom representative that the text prepared by the Com­
mission on Human Rights was somewhat long and 
verbose. Principles 7 and 11, for instance, could 
easily be amalgamated. As the Commission on Human 
Rights had obviously felt that it had good grounds for 
elaborating the text prepared by the Social Commis­
sion, !J i t would be helpful if those members of the 
Commission on Hwnan Rights who were also members 
of the Committee, could explain why it had clone so. 

17. Mr. RUDA (Argentina) said t hat his Government 
believed that the main importance of the Declaration 
lay in its moral value; it would undoubtedly inspire 
many countries to adopt suitable legislation and serve 
a s a guide to their courts. 

18. The text could, in his view, be improved. He 
agreed with the United Kingdom r epresentative that it 
should be more concise and didactic as it would then 
be easier to understand and disseminate to the public. 
As far as the substance was concerned, one funda­
mental right had been omitted, the right to life from 
the moment of conception. The r ight to life was the 
fundamental basis of the political philosophy of the 
United Nations; it was moreover embodied in article 3 
of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights . He 
intended to submit an amendment to remedy that defect. 

19. Mrs. HOLT (Canada) said that the vast majority 
of Canada's 6 million children enjoyed the benefits of 
family life. To ensure their well- beingthe Government 
had adopted a variety of measures designed to strength­
en and assist the family. Voluntary agencies also made 
important contributions to the welfare of families and 
children. For the unfortunate few who could notre­
ceive normal home care even more was being done. 
In recent years there had been a steady improvement 
in child care, adoption and r elated services. None the 
less, the Canadian approach was , in general, to work 
with and through the parent, with whom the ma in 
respon.sibility for ensuring that the child grew into a 
well- balanced adult must rest. 

20. Canada's views regarding the principle of a draft 
declaration of the rights of the child were already on 
r ecord and she accordingly propos ed to deal only with 
the kind of text which her delegation wouldbe inclined 
to favour. In her view, the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights owed its influence and the respect in 
which it was generally held to its soundness, generality 
and clarity. The draft Declaration should possess the 
same attributes. It should consist of a brief statement 
of principles which would clearly affirm the essential 
rights of the child and should make no attempt to lay 
clown detailed standards of child welfare. Her del ega­
tion would consider sympathetically any proposal to 
facilitate the adoption of a text of that kind. 

21. Mr. RULLI (Italy) said that his delegation felt 
that a draft declaration for the protection of children 
should be adopted without delay. 

22, The Declaration should, he believed, be as de­
tailed as possible . It should serve as a model and 
inspiration for gradual reforms, which would be made 
easier by its existence. He regarded a number of 
principles as fundamental. First, the child should be 

!/ OHtclal Records of the Economic and Social Council. Eleventh 
Sess!OI) 1 Supplement No. 3, annex 11, part IV, r eproduced In Official 
Records of the Economic and Social Council, Twenty-eighth S~ 
SupPlement No. 8 (E/3229) . para. 197. resolurion S (XV). 



909th meeting- 28 September 1959 . 17 

protected from the time of conception and not merely 
from birth; secondly, the protection afforded the child 
should be such as to prevent evils befalling it rather 
than to cure the ills which had already befallen it; 
thirdly, the family should be regarded as the focal 
point for the development of the child's personality 
since otherwise there was a danger that the family 
would come to look upon public intervention as an 
inherent right rather than a means for protecting the 
child against the family's negligence; fourthly, in the 
case of a child that was socially maladjusted, or in 
other instances where intervention in the parent's 
upbringing of the child appeared to be in the latter's 
interests, the measures recommended for its protec­
tion should be formulated with the greatest care by 
juvenile courts and carried out under the auspices of 
welfare organizations by specially trained staff. He 
hoped those principles would be included in the text of 
the Declaration finally approved by the Committee. 

23. Mr. PADMORE (Liberia) said that his delegation 
welcomed the efforts of the Third Committee to ad­
vance the welfare of children throughout the world. 
Liberia was undergoing a process of political and 
economic growth and was anxious to accord equal 
opportunities to all children so that theywouldbe able 
to assume the future responsibilities of the nation. 
His Government had to concern itselfwithproblemsof 
improving the diet of children and adults, providing a 
healthier environment, improving medical facilities, 
building bigger and better schools, and developing a 
sense of individual responsibility in the child at an 
early age. The problems of the countries of the world 
were becoming increasingly interrelated and the 
prospect of a co-ordinated plan to improve the status 
and welfare of all children was most encouraging. 

24. Mr. SHEN (China) said that his delegation felt 
that the General Assembly's undertaking to formulate 
and adopt a declaration on the rights of the child was 
desirable and timely. Children needed special care and 
protection for the full development of their personali­
ties and the Declaration, if adopted, wouldexertmoral 
pressure to that end. 

25. The Declaration should be clear and simple so that 
it could be understood by ordinary people. It should 
lay down fundamental principles but should contain no 
provisions for their implementation, since the same 
principle could be implemented in a number of dif­
ferent ways. 

26. If the Declaration were to serve its purpose, it 
was essential that States should be willing to observe 
the provisions of the Declaration to the best of their 
ability. An international instrument proclaiming the 
basic rights which a child, as a human being, was en­
titled to enjoy, would have little meaning in a country 
where the Government flagrantly denied the basic 
human rights and fundamental freedoms of all the 
citizens, as many did which paid lip-service to the 
Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 

27. Several representatives had referred to the im­
portant role which the family played in a child's up­
bringing and he agreed with them. It was sad indeed to 
see families being broken up under the commune sys­
tem on the mainland of China and children there treated 
as State property. 

28. His delegation was prepared to consider sympa­
thetically all concrete and constructive proposals for 
the improvement of the text of the draft Declaration. 

29. Mrs. DIEMER (Netherlands) said that her delega­
tion believed that the draft Declaration, if adopted, 
would help to improve the position of the child, as a 
declaration, once accepted by the community of nations, 
had great moral value, even if it was not fully binding 
under international law. It would serve as a directive 
for future nationallegislationandforthe interpretation 
of the rights of the child at the national level. 

30. The Declaration should state only the basic princi­
ples. A declaration which went further would not be 
effective, as many Governments wouldnotbeprepared 
to accept it. She did not feel that the draft under con­
sideration met those requirements. She preferred the 
text proposed by the Social Commission, and that pro­
posed by the General Council of the IUCW (E/CN.4/ 
NG0/84), although neither was fully acceptable. 
31. In all three texts the General Assembly was 
asked to call upon men and women as individuals and 
not as parents. Yet the conduct of father and mother 
as a unit was fundamental to the fulfilment of several 
of the basic needs of the child. Further, none of the 
texts contained a reference to the voluntary organiza­
tions which had been among the first to protect the 
rights of the child. 
32~ With regard to the basic principles, there for­
tunately appeared to be fairly general agreement. 
Principles 1 and 2, read in conjunction with the pre­
amble, were of course of vital importance. She was 
happy to note that principle 4 recognized the child's 
right from his birth to a name and she also welcomed 
principle 6, which stated that the young child should 
not, save in exceptional circumstances, be separated 
from his mother. 

33. In a number of instances the text ofthe Commis­
sion on Human Rights lacked precision and was un­
necessarily lax. If full weight were given to the wording 
of principle 2, principles 3 and 10 could easily be 
deleted. Principle 10 was in fact an elaboration of 
principle 2. 

34. The position was similar with regard to princi­
ples 6, 7, 9 and 11 and thewording of principles 5 and 
6 in the text of the IUCW appeared to be preferable to 
the wording of principles 6 and 7 in the text of the 
Commission on Human Rights. 

35. In principle B, she felt that the Commission on 
Human Rights should have retainedtheword "amongst", 
which appeared in the Social Commission's text. 

36. In conclusion, she drew attention to the fact that 
the realization ofmostofthe principles in the Declara­
tion for many of the world's children would depend 
largely on the improvement of economic, social and 
cultural conditions in the countries in which they lived. 
An all-out effort must therefore be made to improve 
those conditions. 

37. Mrs. CHERNY A VSKA YA (Byelorussian Soviet 
Socialist Republic) said that her delegation noted with 
satisfaction that representatives were unanimous in 
their desire for an international instrument safeguard­
ing the rights of the child. In the present age of scien­
tific achievement, it was the duty of all countries to 
ensure that the rising generation should have a life of 
peace and opportunities for growth, since thefutureof 
the planet would depend on the care devoted to the 
proper development of the child. 

38. The text of the draft Declaration prepared by the 
Commission on Human Rights offered a satisfactory 



_l_S __________ G_e_ne_r_al_A_s:Jembly - Fourteenth Session- Third Committee 

basis for the elaboration of a docwn•mt acceptable to 
all the delegations. Her delegation collldnotagreethat 
the draft prepared by the IUCW was preferable. That 
text had been based on the Declara1 ion of Geneva of 
1924Y and did not reflect the cbangos that had taken 
place in the world during the past thi:-ty-five years. It 
would also be unwise toreverttothedraft prepared by 
the Social Commission in1950, thus n11llifying the work 
of the eighteen members of the Commission on Human 
Rights and the efforts ofthe countries that had submit­
ted observations on the 1950 draft. 

39. Her delegation believed that tl te draft adopted 
should be based on the most forward- looking andpro­
gressive principles, should reflect the desire of all 
peoples for peace and friendship, and should be prac­
tical in content. It r ealized, however, that the degree to 
which the principles of the Declaratiort would be imple­
mented would be affected by the dil'ferences in the 
social systems and levels of economi•: developmentof 
the various countries. For that reason, although it 
would have preferred a convention, it was prepared to 
accept a declaration. 

40. In the Byelorussian SSR, where a socialist sys­
tem had been established, State initiaHve in matters of 
child welfare went much further than .vas called for in 
the draft Declaration. While her deleglttion did not deny 
the role of the family in the car e of t 1e child, it con­
sidered that it was a foremost dutr of the State to 
create conditions favourable to the dtn elopment ofthe 
child. The Byelorussian Government I tad from the out­
set been inspired by the motto: "The best for the 
child". Among the benefits provided were maternal 
consultation centres, maternity hospitals, medical 
institutes, free medical service, a SY.tltem of cr~ches 
and an eight-year course of free, compulsory educa­
tion, illiteracy had been completely eliminated. The 
Byelorussian Government allotted large allowances to 

Y lbid., Second Session, annex 6. appendix B, p. 299. 

Litho. In U.N. 

families with many childrenandtheworkingconditions 
of young persons was subject to legislative control. 

41. Her delegation could not support the view that the 
Declaration should be abridged. Greater clarifU:ation 
and precision, rather than abridgement, were re­
quired. It agreed with the USSR delegation that the 
Declaration should be practical in character and should 
therefore include a reference to the need for bringing 
the legislation of States into line with the principles of 
the Declaration as well as a provision makingit bind­
ing upon States to do everything within their power to 
carry the principles into effect. If there was a desire 
to dr,aft a declaration of the rights of the child, it was 
logical to assume that there was a desire to carry It 
into effect. The machinery for the implementation of 
the Declaration should therefore be created simul­
taneously with the Declaration. 

42. Mr. MONTE ZUMA HURTADO (Colombia) said 
that his Government was making every effort to pre­
pare Colombian children to face the probJems of life 
a.nd of the world. Having freed itself from dictator­
ship, Colombia was devoting 10 percentofits national 
income to the construction of new primary school s and 
to the protection of the child. As it consolidated its 
return to democracy and freedom, Colombia hoped to 
be able to use for education funds which were currently 
being expended for military requirements and to main­
tain public order. The State's educational planning was 
supported by an extensive community programme 
which enlisted the voluntary co-operation of private 
individuals. For the Colombian people, the child was 
the centre of the pressing responsibilitieswhichfaced 
the nation and Colombia would therefore warmly wel­
come the adoption of a definitive charter of the rights 
of the child at the fourteenth session of the General 
Assembly. 

The meeting rose at 5.15 p.m. 

n301-November 1959-2.025 




